Customer Information and General Provisions Governing Insurance Policies

Effective: January 25, 2025

Noncomittal translation

wsz.: 24718



Contents

I.	Information about the Insurance Company3
II.	Customer Service
III.	Handling Complaints4
IV.	Financial Supervision
V.	Financial Arbitration Board Proceedings, Mediation Proceedings, Litigation5
VI.	The Concept and Practice of Handling Confidential Insurance Information and Processing Personal Data5
VII.	Notice on the Processing of Personal Data
VIII.	Information on Life, Accident and Illness Insurance (Health Insurance) Policies
IX.	Refund of Value Added Tax 12
Х.	Information on Residence for Tax Purposes12
XI.	Interest on Late Payment

XII.	Administration fee
XIII.	Rules of Accounting for Insurance Premiums Paid
XIV.	Method of Payment
XV.	Insurance Intermediary14
XVI.	Eligibility to Discounts14
XVII.	Formal requirements for and conditions for the validity of legal statements (notifications, reporting)14
XVIII.	Miscellaneous Provisions
XIX.	Governing Law, Jurisdiction
XX.	Information On Distance Marketing16
XXI.	Rules Applicable to Electronic Contracts
XXII.	Provisions of the Customer Information which Substantially Derogate from the Provisions of the Hungarian Civil Code and from Usual Contractual Practice

Customer Information and General Provisions Governing Insurance Policies

Generali Private Ltd. appriciate your trust and application for concluding insurance contract.

We kindly request you to carefully read the following information whereby we wish to introduce our company, and the company's organizational units dealing with customer complaints and notifications. You will be informed about the name and address of the financial supervisory authority. You may learn how you can submit complaints to the National Bank of Hungary and to Hungarian Financial Arbitration Board, according to the nature of such complaint, or how you may bring your case to court. You will find useful information on the statutory provision governing the protection and management of personal data.

You may read the list of organizations and bodies to whom, pursuant to Act LXXXVIII of 2014 on the Business of Insurance, the insurance company is allowed to disclose personal data of customers, which qualify as confidential data related to insurance. This document will cover the most important to-dos before signing an insurance application, including information on the concepts and practice of personal data management, in order to allow you to make an informed legal statement about your intention to take out an insurance policy. You may also find useful information on the rules of taxation with respect to insurance policies.

This Customer Information and General Provisions Governing Insurance Policies (hereinafter: Customer Information) also sets out general provisions applicable to all insurance policies concluded.

In addition to the provisions set out in the Customer Information, the legal relationship concluded under the insurance shall also be subject to – depending on the type of the insurance policy – the general terms and conditions, the special and additional conditions for each policies, the statements and declarations of the policyholder/insured, as well as the filled out the questionnaire furnished by the insurance company.

All matters not regulated by the Customer Information, the general, special and additional terms and conditions (hereinafter jointly referred to as: general conditions), will be governed by the provisions of the Act on the Civil Code or the provisions of other effective Hungarian legislation.

I. INFORMATION ABOUT THE INSURANCE COMPANY

Generali Biztosító Zrt – formerly: Generali-Providencia Biztosító Rt. then Generali-Providencia Biztosító Zártkörűen Működő Részvénytársaság then Generali-Providencia Biztosító Zrt. – was established by the merger of Providencia Austrian-Hungarian Insurance Ltd. and Generali Budapest Insurance Ltd. on April 30, 1999.

The Company belongs to the Generali Group, which is listed in the Insurance Groups Register by IVASS under registration number 26.

The company's name: Generali Biztosító Zrt. The company's share capital (subscribed capital): HUF 4,500,000,000 The company's paid up share capital (paid up subscribed capital): HUF 4,500,000,000 The company's registered seat: H-1066 Budapest, Teréz krt. 42-44. State where the company is established: Hungary Company registration number: 01-10-041305 Tax number: 10308024-4-44 VAT group identification number: 17780058-5-44 Incorporated by: the Court of Registration of the Metropolitan Court of Budapest Principal business activity: non-life insurance Company form: company limited by shares Company classification: private Telephone: +36 1 452 3333 Sole owner and shareholder of the company: Generali CEE Holding B.V. Company registration number: No. 34275688 registered by the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce Registered Seat: NL-1101 BH Amsterdam, De entree 91

Starting from January 1, 2016 the insurance company discloses an annual report on its solvency and financial conditions. The report is available on the insurance company's website (https://generali.hu).

II. CUSTOMER SERVICE

If you have any questions or problems in connection with your insurance policy, you may contact either your insurance intermediary (insurance agent) directly, or any of our customer service offices. You may also call our Telephone Customer Service or contact us online. Our staff will be ready to assist you.

Customer Service – Contact Information

Internet Customer Service: https://generali.hu/Ugyfelszolgalat/Ugyintezes.aspx Customer Service Direct Line: +36 1 452 3333 Address of Central Customer Service: 1132 Budapest, Váci út 36–38.

You may find customer service points at your convenience at: https://generali.hu/ugyfelszolgalat

For further information and guidance visit the company's website at https://generali.hu/kapcsolat (Online Customer Service; Contact Us). If our Internet customer service is temporarily unavailable, you may contact us via our customer service direct line. For further information about opening hours of our customer service direct line visit the company's website at https://generali.hu/Ugyfelszolgalat/Telefonos-ugyfelszolgalat.aspx

III. HANDLING COMPLAINTS

If your complaint could not be resolved or settled at your satisfaction despite the best efforts of our staff, you may report the issue to the **Customer Relation Area of Generali Biztosító Zrt.** in person or in writing (submitting the written document in person or by a third person, or sending it in a postal or electronic mail to the addresses contained herein). You may notify us about any complaints in connection with the business conduct, activities or omission of the Insurer, the tide insurance intermediary, or the ancillary insurance intermediary mandated by the Insurer at any of the contact addresses set forth in the foregoing.

Mailing Address: 7602 Pécs, PO Box 888 Telephone: +36 1 452 3333 E-mail: generali.hu@generali.com Internet: https://generali.hu/panaszbejelentes Central Customer Service: 1132 Budapest, Váci út 36–38.

For more personal customer service points contact details, please visit: https://generali.hu/ugyfelszolgalat

You may notify your **written complaint** (document submitted in person, by other or by post or by e-mail to the given e-mail address) via availabilities of the Insurance Company indicated above. You can file your oral complaint in our offices opened for clients during office hours. You may also file a complaint on the telephone during opening hours of our customer service direct line as stated in the complaints management policy and at our company's website.

You may find additional information about the Company's complaints management process and practices as well as about the method of keeping records of complaints at the company's website or in the complaints management policy made available to customers in our customer service offices.

Please note that pursuant to Regulation No 524/2013/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 21 May 2013 on online dispute resolution for consumer disputes implemented in the Member States of the European Union, the European Union established an alternative online dispute resolution (ODR) platform at Union level, available at https://webgate.ec.europa.eu/odr.

The platform may be used to initiate out-of-court resolution of disputes concerning contractual obligations stemming from online sales or service contracts between a consumer (private individual) resident in the Union and a trader established in the Union. The online dispute resolution platform may also be used to settle financial consumer disputes.

The Regulation should not apply to disputes between consumers and traders that arise from contracts concluded offline and to disputes between traders.

The Regulation directly applies to financial service providers established in Hungary, including Generali Biztosító Zrt., if the insurance contract between the consumer and the insurance company has been concluded by the consumer on the website of the insurance company, or of the insurance intermediary (typically without the engagement of the insurance intermediary) through an application used for contract conclusion.

Pursuant to the Regulation consumers may initiate out-of-court resolution of disputes on the platform. The body authorized for out-of-court resolution of disputes in Hungary is the Financial Arbitration Board.

The National Bank of Hungary issued a consumer advice on the online dispute resolution (ODR) platform, which may be read at: https://mnb.hu/bekeltetes/online-vitarendezesi-platform

IV. FINANCIAL SUPERVISION

IV.1. The operation of the insurance company is supervised by the National Bank of Hungary (hereinafter: NBH or Financial Supervision)

Financial Supervision – Contact Information Registered Seat: 1013 Budapest, Krisztina krt. 55. Mailing Address: National Bank of Hungary, 1850 Budapest Telephone: +36 1 428 2600 Fax: +36 1 429 8000 E-mail: info@mnb.hu Website: https://www.mnb.hu/web/felugyelet Customer Service Address: 1122 Budapest, Krisztina krt. 6. Customer Service Mailing Address: 1534 Budapest, BKKP, PO Box 777 Customer Service Direct Line: +36 80 203 776 Customer Service Fax: + 36 1 489 9102 Customer Service Email Address: ugyfelszolgalat@mnb.hu

You are kindly reminded of the Financial Supervision's customer protection website (https://mnb.hu/fogyasztovedelem), where you may find useful information and comparison tools.

- IV.2. Our Company is licensed to pursue activities which are supervised by the NBH. With respect to the supervised activities, the Financial Supervision shall, upon request or of its own motion, monitor compliance with:
 - a) the provisions of the Insurance Act or the regulations adopted for for its implementation, and a directly applicable legal act of general application of the European Union laying down provisions as to business-to-consumer commercial practices in connection with the insurance company's activities for the pursuit of the supply of services, and
 - b) the provisions of the Act on the Prohibition of Unfair Business-to-Consumer Commercial Practices,
 - c) the provisions of Act on the Basic Requirements and Certain Restrictions of Commercial Advertising Activities; and
 - d) and the provisions of the Act on Electronic Commerce and on Information Society Services [Subsections a)-d) hereinafter referred to collectively as consumer protection regulations)]; furthermore

e) the provisions on meeting obligations in relation to consumer disputes of a financial nature, and – with the exception of the regulations pertaining to the conclusion, validity, legal aspects and termination of policies, and cases of breach of contract and the related legal ramifications – shall take action in the event of any infringement of these provisions (hereinafter: consumer protection proceedings).

Consumer protection proceedings may be initiated at the Financial Supervision by consumers, as defined in the Act on the National Bank of Hungary, after having lodged a complaint orally or in writing with the insurance company if the consumer did not receive a response, or the investigation of the complaint was not in compliance with the law, or another infringement of consumer rights, defined in the legislation referred to above, may be presumed from the response of the insurance company.

The Financial Supervision, however, has no power to act in legal disputes which relate to the conclusion, validity, legal aspects and termination of insurance policies, or to any cases of breach of contract and the related legal ramifications.

V. FINANCIAL ARBITRATION BOARD PROCEEDINGS, MEDIATION PROCEEDINGS, LITIGATION

V.1. The Financial Arbitration Board is a professionally independent body operated by the National Bank of Hungary. In order to settle financial consumer disputes arising from or in relation to the conclusion of the insurance policy or the payment of insurance benefits or proceeds out of court, the consumer may file a claim with the Financial Arbitration Board. The Financial Arbitration Board shall attempt to reach a conciliation agreement or, failing this, to adopt a decision in the case to enforce consumer rights simply, efficiently and practically and under the principle of cost-efficiency.

Initiation of arbitration proceedings is subject to a previous attempt by the customer to resolve the disputed matter through direct negotiations with the insurance company or a request to the insurance company for special consideration, to no avail.

Financial Arbitration Board – Contact Information Registered Seat: 1013 Budapest, Krisztina krt. 55. Customer Service: 1122 Budapest, Krisztina krt. 6. Mailing Address: Financial Arbitration Board H-1525 Budapest PO Box 172. Telephone: +36 80 203 776 Email: ugyfelszolgalat@mnb.hu

You may find further information on the operations of the Financial Arbitration Board (including the Board's Rules of Procedure) at https://mnb.hu/bekeltetes.

- V.2. In addition to other non-litigious procedures providing an alternative to court proceedings to resolve conflicts and disputes, such as Financial Arbitration Proceedings, customers may, pursuant to Act LV of 2002 on Mediation, also initiate mediation proceedings.
- V.3. Claims arising from insurance policy may be enforced directly through judicial procedures without referring them to the above alternative dispute resolution forums. Such judicial procedures shall be governed by the provisions of Act CXXX of 2016 on the Code of Civil Procedure.

VI. THE CONCEPT AND PRACTICE OF HANDLING CONFIDENTIAL INSURANCE INFORMATION

VI.1. Confidential Insurance Information and Personal Data

'Confidential insurance information' shall comprise all of the data – other than classified information – in the possession of insurance companies, reinsurers and insurance intermediaries that pertain to the personal particulars, financial standing and business affairs of customers (including injured parties) of insurance companies, reinsurers and insurance intermediaries, and to the insurance policies that such customers have concluded with an insurance company or reinsurer.

Confidential insurance information shall, in particular, include:

- personal particulars of the insurance company's customers;
- insured properties and their value;
- sums insured;
- in the case of life, accident, illness or liability insurance, data related to medical and health conditions;
- the amount and settlement date of any sum insured paid;
- all material information, data and conditions related to the insurance contract, its conclusion and registration, and to the insurance benefits.

VI.2. Obligation to Keep Insurance Information Confidential

Unless otherwise stipulated by law, the owners, managers and employees of the Insurance Company, and all other persons who have access to 'confidential insurance information' in any way or form while pursuing their business activities shall be required to maintain professional confidentiality without a time limit.

Confidential insurance information may only be disclosed to a third party

- if the insurance company's customer or his/her representative grants a written exemption indicating the precise extent of the information which may be disclosed,
- if the duty of confidentiality does not apply, pursuant to the Insurance Act,
- if it becomes known to the certification body appointed by the insurer or its subcontractors,
- the insurer's interest so requires for the sale or enforcement of its claim against the customer.

VI.2.1. The requirement of confidentiality concerning insurance secrets shall not apply to:

- a) the Authority in exercising its designated functions,
- b) the body conducting preliminary proceedings, the investigating authority, the public procesutor's office, and the police acting in their capacity as offence authorities and the National Tax and Customs Administration,
- c) the court of law in connection with criminal cases, civil actions and non-contentious proceedings, and administrative actions, including the experts appointed by the court, and the independent court bailiff in connection with a case of judicial enforcement, the administrator in bankruptcy proceedings, the temporary administrator, the exceptional administrator and the liquidator in liquidation proceedings, the principal creditor in debt consolidation procedures of natural persons, the Családi Csődvédelmi Szolgálat (Family Bankruptcy Protection Service), the family administrator, the court,

- d) the notaries public and the experts appointed by them in connection with probate cases,
- the tax authority in connection with tax matters where the insurance company is required by law to disclose specific information to the tax e) authority upon request and/or to disclose data concerning any payment made under an insurance policy that is subject to tax liability, the National Security Service when acting in an official capacity,
- g) the Hungarian Competition Authority when acting in an official capacity,
- h) Children and Youth Services acting in an official capacity,
- the public health authority specified in Section 108 (2) of Act CLIV of 1997 on Health Care, i)
- i) the agencies authorized to conduct covert investigations if the conditions set forth in legislation are provided for,
- the reinsurer, any other Group entity, as well as the participating insurance companies in the case of co-insurance, k)
- the bureau of insurance policy records maintaining the central policy records with respect to data transmitted as governed by law, the I) claims records agency keeping accident and claims records, the traffic control authority in connection with road transport administrative actions relating to vehicles which are not listed in the motor vehicle registry, and the body operating the register of motor vehicles,
- m) the recipient insurance company, in respect of insurance policies transferred in an insurance portfolio transfer, in accordance with the provisions of the related agreement,
- the body operating the Claims Security Account, and the Claims Security Fund, the National Office, the Correspondence Center, the Inn) formation Center, the Claims Organization and the claims agent, the claims representative with respect to the information required for the settlement and enforcement of compensation claims and to the transfer of such information between one another, and the party responsible for the claim if, by exercising his/her right to self-determination, he/she requires access to data of repairs of the other vehicle from a claims settlement report taken in connection with the road accident,
- O) in respect of data required for the performance of outsourced activities, the entity performing the outsourced activities, while in respect of data required for auditing, the auditor,
- third-country insurance companies and insurance intermediaries in respect of their branch offices, if they are able to satisfy the requirep) ments prescribed by Hungarian law in connection with the management of each datum and the country in which the third-country insurance company is established has legal regulations on data protection that conform to the requirements stipulated by Hungarian law,
- the Parliamentary Commissioner when acting in an official capacity, a)
- the Authority for Data Protection and Freedom of Information when acting in an official capacity, r)
- the insurance company with respect to historical claims data and bonus-malus classification as stipulated in the Minister's Decree contans) ing detailed provisions on the claims bonus system, classification within the system, and claims certificates, in the cases set forth in the same regulation,
- the body assessing the agricultural damage or loss, the agricultural administrative office, the body responsible for the mitigation of agricult) tural losses, and the agricultural analysis institution overseen by the ministry headed by the Minister in charge of rural policy, for insured persons covered by agricultural insurance policies for standing crops,
- the authority keeping the registry of liquidation organizations, u)
- MABISZ with regard to the operation of the claims application, the collection of necessary information relating to the insurance event and the transmission to insurers for claims settlement purposes of the data provided in the e-claims application under MTPL Act,

upon receipt of a data request, and/or written inquiry from an agency or person referred to in Paragraphs a)-j), n), s), t) and u) indicating the name of the customer or the description of the insurance policy, the type of data requested and the purpose and grounds for requesting data. The bodies or persons referred to in Paragraphs p)-s) are required to indicate only the type of data requested and the purpose and grounds for requesting it. An indication of the statutory provision under national law or Community legislation granting authorization for requesting data shall be treated as verification of the purpose and legal grounds.

The duty to retain insurance information in confidence also applies to the employees of the authorities and organizations specified above.

The duty to retain insurance information in confidence shall not apply to financial institutions specified in the Act on Credit Institutions, in respect of insurance policies related to claims arising from financial services, if the financial institution sends a written request to the insurance company which specified the customer's name, or the insurance policy's reference number, the types of data requested as well as the purpose of the data request.

The duty of confidentiality is not breached if, pursuant to Act XIX of 2014 on the promulgation of the Agreement between the Government of Hungary and the Government of the United States of America to Improve International Tax Compliance and to Implement FATCA and on the amendment of other related acts (hereinafter: FATCA Act), data reports are submitted to the Hungarian State Tax Office in order to comply with the reporting obligation set out in Section 43/B-43/C of Act XXXVII of 2013 on the rules of international public administration cooperation related to taxes and other public duties (hereinafter: Aktv).

The duty of confidentiality is not breached if the data reports are submitted by the insurance company to the tax office in order to comply with the reporting obligation set out in Section 43/H of the Aktv as well as in Sections 43/B és 43/C of the Aktv pursuant to the FATCA Act.

- VI.2.2. Insurance company shall be required to supply information forthwith where so requested in writing by the the body conducting preliminary proceedings, the investigating authority, the public prosecutor's office and the court, including data requests, if there is any suspicion that an insurance transaction is associated with:
 - drug abuse, abuse of new psychoactive substances, acts of terrorism, illegal possession of explosives and blasting agents, criminal a) misuse of firearms and ammunition, money laundering, organized crime or crime committed in participation in a criminal organization, as defined in Act IV of 1978, in force until June 30, 2013,
 - b) drug trafficking, possession of drugs, incitement to the use of narcotics, or the promotion of illegal drug production, abuse of new psychoactive substances, acts of terrorism, failing to report terrorism, financing of terrorism, illegal possession of explosives and blasting agents, criminal misuse of firearms and ammunition, money laundering, organized crime or crime committed in participation in a criminal organization, as defined in the Criminal Code of Hungary.

The duty to retain insurance information in confidence does not apply if the insurance company is required to comply with its reporting obligation imposed by Act CLXXX of 2007 on the Implementation of Financial and Asset-related Restrictive Measures ordered by the European Union.

The duty of confidentiality is not breached if the findings of a group supervision are delivered to the ultimate parent company of the financial group when a supervision is performed on a consolidated basis.

The obligation of confidentiality concerning insurance secrets shall not be breached by transmission of data under Section 164/B of Act CCXXXVII of 2013 on Credit Institutions and Financial Enterprises (Hpt.).

The duty to retain insurance information in confidence shall not apply furthermore if

- a) a Hungarian law enforcement agency acting in response to the written request of a foreign law enforcement agency pursuant to an international agreement – request confidential insurance information from in writing
- b) the national financial intelligence unit makes a written request for information that is considered insurance secret from an insurance company acting within its powers conferred under Act LIII of 2017 on the Prevention and Combating of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing or in order to fulfill the written requests made by a foreign financial intelligence unit, and in connection with the insurance or reinsurance company fulfilling its obligation relating to policies and procedures at the group level for combating money laundering and terrorist financing.

VI.2.3. The duty of confidentiality is not breached when the insurance company transfers information to a third-country insurance company, reinsurer or a third-country data processing agency:

- a) if the customer of the insurance company (data subject) has given a prior written consent, or
- b) if in the absence of the data subject's consent the data transfer is made in compliance with the provisions applicable to the transfer of personal data to third countries.

When transferring confidential insurance data to another Member State, the provisions governing data transfer within the domestic territory shall be observed.

VI.2.4. The duty of confidentiality is not breached

- a) in the event of disclosure of summarized information from which the identity of customers or the specifics of their business cannot be identified,
- b) in respect of branch offices, in the event of data transfer to the supervisory authority of the country where the registered address (main office) of the foreign-registered enterprise is located, if such transfer is in compliance with the agreement between the Hungarian and the foreign supervisory authorities,
- c) in the event of disclosure of information, other than personal data, to the minister for legislative purposes or in connection with the completion of feasibility studies,
- d) in the event of data disclosure to comply with the act on the supplementary supervision of regulated entities which belong to financial conglomerates.

The insurance company may not refuse to disclose the data specified in the foregoing on the grounds of their duty to retain insurance information in confidence.

The insurance company may not inform the data subject if data is transferred or disclosed pursuant to points b), f) and j) of Clause VI.2.1 or points a)-b) of Clause VI.2.2.

The insurance company is allowed to disclose the personal data of customers in the cases and to the bodies set out in Clauses VI.2.1–VI.2.4 and in Clause VI.1.2.

- VI.2.5. The insurance company shall be entitled to disclose data up to the date gaining knowledge of the conclusion of probate proceedings by final decision
 - a) in connection with the property insurance concluded by the deceased policyholder, and solely for the purpose of maintaining the insurance contract concerned by the payment of premium on the existence of the insurance contract, the number of the insurance policy, standard contract terms and conditions, the premiums balance, the amount of any premium owed, the anniversary of the contract to the close relative of the deceased policyholder or the holder of the asset,
 - b) for that credit life insurance contract, as well as for that insurance contract related, where the beneficiary is a credit institution and the insured person of the contract is the deceased person, solely the notification of the claim to the insurer and for the purpose of sending to the insurer the data necessary for the provision of the service the existence of the insurance contract, the number of the insurance certificate and the standard contract terms and conditions of the insurance contract to the close relative of the deceased insured person
 - upon its written request, subject to documentary proof of the applicant's such capacity.

According to Subsection (5) of Section 143 of the Insurance Act to the close relative or the holder of the asset provision of data does not constitute a breach of insurance confidentiality. The insurance company shall be allowed to process the applicant's personal data for a period of five years after the time of disclosure, or – if the period provided for in Subsection (3) of Section 142 of the Insurance Act is longer – for the period specified in Subsection (3) of Section 142 of the Insurance Act.

VI.2.6. Any information that is declared to be information of public interest or public information, and as such is rendered subject to disclosure may not be withheld on the grounds of being treated as a trade secret or insurance secret.

VI.3. Purposes of Data Processing

Protecting the insured pool

Please note that in order to protect the interest of the insured pool, the insurance company may request other insurance companies in respect of performing their obligations required by law or agreed in the insurance policy and under the authority of Section 149 of the Insurance Act, to disclose information to the extent specified in Section 149 (3)-(6) of the Insurance Act, which is processed by the requested insurance company for the purposes set out in Section 135 (1) of the Insurance Act, taking account of the specific features of insurance products, in order to deliver the services in compliance with the legal and contractual provisions and to prevent abuse of insurance policies.

The request must include identification data for the person, property or property right specified therein, the type of information requested, and the purpose of the data request. Requesting or disclosing information in this manner shall not be a breach of the duty of confidentiality.

Within this context, Generali Biztosító Zrt. may request

- in respect of the delivery of insurance benefits under policies classified as accident, illness or any other life insurance, the following information:
 - a) personal identification data of policyholders, insured parties and beneficiaries;
 - b) medical information of insured persons related to the insurable risks, disclosed at the time of the respective data collection;
 - c) claims history information of the persons referred to in subsection a) above, in respect of insurance policies belonging to the insurance classes specified in this paragraph;

- d) information underlying the assessment of the risks identified in relation to the insurance policy taken out from the disclosing insurance company; and
- e) information used for the determination of the legal grounds of insurance benefits claimed on the insurance policy taken out from the disclosing insurance company;
- in respect of the delivery of insurance benefits under policies classified into the insurance lines of insurance of road vehicles (not including railway rolling stock), insurance of rail vehicles, aircrafts, sea, lake and river vessels, insurance of goods in transit, fire and natural forces, other damage to property, credit, surety, guarantee, miscellaneous financial loss, legal expenses, and emergency assistance:
 - a) personal identification data of policyholders, insured parties, beneficiaries and the injured parties;
 - b) information required for the identification of insured property or assets, claims or property rights;
 - c) claims history information concerning the property, assets, claims or property rights referred to in subsection b) above;
 - d) information underlying the assessment of the risks identified in relation to the insurance policy taken out from the disclosing insurance company; and
 - e) information used for the determination of the legal grounds of insurance benefits claimed on the insurance policy taken out from the disclosing insurance company;
- the following information in respect of the delivery of insurance benefits under policies classified into the insurance lines of liability insurance of vehicles operated over land (including carrier's liability and compulsory liability coverage), aircraft liability insurance, liability insurance of sea, lake and river vessels as well as general liability insurance:
 - a) the personal identification data of the injured party, subject to his/her prior written consent;
 - b) the personal identification data of the policyholder, the insured and the beneficiary, as well as data specified in subsections b)-e) above;
 - c) subject to the prior written consent of the injured parties, the medical information of persons who file claims for personal injury or claims for restitution due to a personality infringement, disclosed at the time of the respective data collection in respect of the insured risks;
 - d) information of a claimant who files a claim for property damage, as long as such information does not contain personal data pertaining to a previous insured event which occurred under any insurance classified to the insurance lines specified in this paragraph;
 - e) subject to the prior approval of the injured person, information of a claimant who files a claim for personal injuries, or compensation, pertaining to a previous insured event which occurred under any insurance classified to the insurance lines specified in this paragraph.
- the registered identification data of any vehicle (vehicle identification number (VIN), and license plate number) in respect of the delivery of
 insurance benefits under policies classified into the insurance lines of liability insurance of road vehicles (not including railway rolling stock),
 liability insurance of motor vehicles operated over land (including carrier's liability and compulsory liability coverage) the following information, even without the prior written consent of the injured party, in respect of the delivery of insurance benefits under policies classified
 into the insurance lines of liability insurance of land vehicles (including carrier's liability and compulsory motor liability coverage).
 - a) information about an insured event which the vehicle was involved in, particularly the date of the insured event, the legal ground of the claim, the injuries of the vehicle and associated loss, including information about injuries to the vehicle specified by the requesting company but not caused by a motor vehicle,
 - b) information about the loss survey of the particular vehicle, and the amount of the assessed damage.

The insurance company approached by our company is required to disclose the information requested in compliance with the applicable legislation to our company by the due date specified in the request, or failing that, within fifteen days of receipt of the request.

Our company may use the information it has been disclosed pursuant to the request for ninety days following receipt. If the information obtained by our company pursuant to the request, is required for the enforcement of the company's legitimate interests, the above defined maximum data processing period will be extended until a decision is adopted in the proceedings opened to enforce such interests.

If the information obtained by our company pursuant to the request, is required for the enforcement of the company's legitimate interests, and no proceedings to enforce such interests are opened within one year following receipt of the information, the period available for the processing of the information will be one year from receipt thereof.

Our company is required to notify the customer of the fact of the information request and the disclosure of the requested information, as well as the extent of the data requested at least once during the insured period, and shall provide access for the client upon request to his or her personal data. If a customer requests information on his or her personal data and the insurance company – with regard to the above – no longer processes the requested data, the insurance company shall notify the customer of such fact.

Our company will not establish a connection between the information received pursuant to the request and other information not related to insured interests which it is provided or it manages for purposes other than the above.

Liability for the correctness and accuracy of the information disclosed pursuant to a request shall lie with the disclosing insurance company.

VII. NOTICE ON THE PROCESSING OF PERSONAL DATA

Pursuant to REGULATION (EU) 2016/679 OF THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT AND OF THE COUNCIL of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data, and repealing Directive 95/46/EC (hereinafter: General Data Protection Regulation), this Privacy Notice on the Processing of Personal Data has been designed to inform You about how your personal data are processed and for what purposes.

VII.1. Who will process your personal data?

Generali Biztosító Zrt will process your personal data acting as data controller.

VII.2. How is your personal data processed and used?

Our company processes personal data for the following purposes:

- i) to conclude, modify, keep records of, and maintain your insurance policy,
- ii) to underwrite coverage and manage insured risks,
- iii) to assess claims made on the insurance policy,
- iv) to prevent and combat the fraudulent use or abuse of insurance policies and the interest of the insurance pool,
- v) to handle complaints,
- vi) to prevent and combat money laundering and terrorism financing, to determine tax residence.

Legal basis for data management:

- a) conclusion and fulfillment of the insurance contract and enforcement of claims arising from the contract (point b) of Article 6 (1) of the General Data Protection Regulation);
- b) fulfillment of legal obligations: management and preservation of accounting documents, prevention and combating of money laundering and terrorist financing, determination of tax residence, complaint handling activities (point c) of Article 6 (1) of the General Data Protection Regulation);
- c) to enforce a legitimate interest: monitoring performance metrics; measuring, prevention and combating of insurance-related abuses and risks; submission, enforcement and protection of legal claims arising from the insurance contract; transfer information to and for the benefit of the credit institution concerning a housing insurance contract relating to a claim on a credit institution (point f) of Article 6 (1) of the General Data Protection Regulation);
- d) If you choose to communicate electronically, your consent regarding the email address and phone number (Article 6 (1) point a) of the General Data Protection Regulation).

In the case of health data management, an additional condition for data management is the express consent of the data subjects to the data management (point a) of Article 9 (2) of the General Data Protection Regulation or if the management of health data is necessary for the submission, enforcement or protection of legal claims (point (f) of Article 9 (2) of the General Data Protection Regulation).

VII.3. What types of personal data are processed?

We only process personal data which are required for the above purposes of processing and are suitable for delivering the objective of the data processing. Depending on the type of insurance you conclude with us, our company processes the following data in particular.

- general identification data of natural persons, address, gender;
- other identification and contact data (e.g.: taxpayer's ID, license plate number, telephone number, email address);
- financial data (e.g.: bank account number, information about income and savings);
- information about the insurance policy, including claims/losses notified on the policy (e.g.: data of insured property, insured location, images, audio and video recordings, or medical data and documents in respect of personal insurance or personal injury claims).

In certain cases, the insurance company obtains your personal data from a third party: for instance, if you take out our insurance from an insurance broker, or notify a claim or a loss through an insurance broker.

VII.4. Who will we share your personal data with?

VII.4.1. Outsourced service providers, data processors and tied insurance agents

We entrust third party service providers (data processors and outsourced service providers) and tied insurance agents with data processing activities, whom we may transfer your data to. If the tied insurance agent carries out data processing concerning you on behalf of our company, your data will be processed by the tied insurance agent in its role as data processor. You can find a current list of the data processors and outsourced service providers entrusted by us from the Privacy Notice available at www.generali.hu, and you may find detailed information about the insurance company's tied insurance intermediaries at the website of the National Bank of Hungary at https://regiszter.mnb.hu/Person and https://regiszter.mnb.hu/Company.

VII.4.2. Exchange of information within the international Generali Group for the purpose of prevention and combating money laundering and terrorist financing

Our company and the 48 Generali member companies operating in 27 other countries around the world

- data collected on mandatory customer due diligence measures affecting life insurance
- information on the suspension, rejection of the transaction, the client risk classification and, in the case of notification to the authorities acting as financial information units (in Hungary, the National Tax and Customs Administration), the notification

share, coordinate, record among themselves, and to this end, our company transmits this data and information to the group's parent company (Assicurazioni Generali S.p.a., Trieste, Piazza Duca degli Abruzzi no. 2, Italy). As a result of the mutual exchange of information, our company may also receive information about you in the above circle through Assicurazioni Generali S.p.a. if you are involved in a transaction subject to due diligence with another Generali group member involved in the exchange of information.

The information and data shared may also be accessed by Generali group member companies with their place of activity in so-called third countries outside the European Economic Area. These third countries are Argentina, Switzerland, USA, China, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Philippines, Thailand, Vietnam, United Arab Emirates, Brazil, Ecuador.

In the third countries listed above, an adequate level of data protection for Switzerland and Argentina is ensured by European Commission Decisions 2000/518/EC and 2003/490/EC establishing an adequate protection of personal data, while for other third countries, it is provided by the application of general data protection contractual clauses adopted by the European Commission.

For the transfer and sharing of data, our company and Assicurazioni Generali S.p.a. are joint data controllers. The purpose and legal basis of the data processing is to fulfil the legal obligation of prevention and combating money laundering and terrorist financing.

VII.4.3. Data shared within the framework of registration of housing insurance and provision of credit guarantee coverage

Our company and ten other insurance companies, as well as eleven credit institutions and the National Bank of Hungary, use a registration system (**DLT System**) based on distributed ledger (so-called distributed database) technology for the registration of housing insurance and the support of the business processes of loan collateral provision.

Credit institutions and insurance companies using the DLT system – including our company – and the National Bank of Hungary are joint data controllers.

The purpose of data processing in the DLT System is to fulfill credit institution data requests received through the DLT System regarding the home insurance contract related to the credit institution claim, its premium arrangement, and status (in particular: valid, rejected or terminated contract), including credit institution requests for the registration or cancellation of the credit guarantee clause management, sending and receiving related notifications, and conducting data reconciliations.

We would like to inform you that if you enter into a housing insurance contract with our company, our company will also record your housing insurance data in the DLT System in order to fulfill the above purpose. Thanks to the distributed database technology of the DLT system, only the credit institution to which you have made a pledge declaration regarding your housing insurance and on the basis of which statement our company registered a credit guarantee clause for the insurance in favor of the relevant credit institution has access to the housing insurance data through the DLT System. In the event of a change of insurance company, the data of the housing insurance and the credit guarantee clause can be accessed by the other insurance company concerned via the DLT system.

The National Bank of Hungary only has access to the aggregated reporting function of the DLT System, it does not know the data of the housing insurance.

The list of credit institutions and insurance companies participating in the joint data controller arrangement is contained in privacy notice referred to in point VII.10.

VII.4.4. Transfer of data to a third country

In the course of its activities, our Company uses third party service providers to whom data is transferred or accessed for transfer to third countries outside the European Economic Area. This may take place if the European Commission has determined, in relation to the third country concerned, that the third country, its territory, one or more specific sectors ensure an adequate level of protection of personal data. In the absence of such a finding by the Commission, we will only transfer personal data if our service provider has provided adequate safeguards with respect to the protection of the data (for example, by accepting the general data protection clauses adopted by the European Commission). For more detailed information on data transfers to third countries and the service providers involved in such transfers, please refer to the privacy notice referred to in point VII.10.

VII.5. Why do we need to obtain your personal data?

You need to disclose some of your personal data so that we can conclude an insurance policy with you and perform our contractual obligations. With respect to insurance policies of a certain value or type, it is our statutory obligation to obtain data in order to prevent and combat money laundering and terrorism financing. Thus, if you refuse to disclose your data – particularly in the latter case – we cannot sign any contract with you. You will face the same consequence if the insurance may only be taken out after medical underwriting or based upon a needs assessment of your personal circumstances and financial conditions, but you refuse to give consent to data processing, or does not provide the requested data to our company.

- VII.6. The law grants you certain rights in respect of the personal data we hold about you
 - Right of access you have the right to obtain from us confirmation as to whether or not your personal data are being processed, and, where that is the case, access to your personal data, on the basis of which our company will rectify or complete the inaccurate or incomplete data without undue delay.

Since keeping personal data accurate and up to date at all times is also our company's obligation, please note that any changes to your data that we become aware of as a result of our lawful requests for data from the Personal Data and Address Register will be reflected in your insurance policies even without your request for a rectification of data.

- Right to rectification you have the right to obtain from our company the rectification or complementation of inaccurate personal data concerning you.
- Right to erasure you have the right to have your personal data erased where one of the following grounds applies:
 - a) the personal data are no longer necessary in relation to the purposes for which they were collected or otherwise processed;
 - b) You withdraw consent on which the processing is based, and there is no other legal ground for the processing;
 - c) You object to data processing based on a legitimate interest of the data controller, including profiling, and there are no overriding legitimate grounds for the processing, or if personal data are processed for direct marketing purposes, and you object to processing of personal data concerning you for such marketing, which includes profiling to the extent that it is related to such direct marketing
 - d) the personal data have been unlawfully processed;
 - e) the personal data have to be erased for compliance with a legal obligation in Union or Member State law to which the controller is subject;
 - the personal data have been collected in relation to the offer of information society services referred to in the Data Protection Regulation.
- **Right to restriction of processing** you have the right to obtain from our company restriction of processing where one of the following applies:
 - a) You contest the accuracy of the personal data, for a period enabling the insurance company as data controller to verify the accuracy of the personal data;
 - b) the processing is unlawful and you oppose the erasure of the personal data and requests the restriction of their use instead;
 - c) Our company no longer needs the personal data for the purposes of the processing, but you require them for the establishment, exercise or defence of legal claims;
 - d) You have objected to data processing pending the verification whether the legitimate grounds of the insurance company override those of your legitimate grounds.
- Right to data portability If the data processing is based on a contract or consent and takes place in an automated manner, the personal
 data you provide to our company will be issued to you in a structured, commonly used, machine-readable format at your request. If it is
 technically possible, at your request, our company will directly transmit such data to another controller.
- Right to withdraw consent Where processing is based on consent, you have the right to withdraw your consent at any time. Withdrawal of consent shall not affect the lawfulness of the data processing prior to withdrawal.
 Please note that in the case of life, accident and health insurance contracts, the withdrawal of consent to the processing of health data may result in the termination of the insurance contract in accordance with the rules of the Civil Code on the impossibility of the contract, considering that the processing of health data is essential for the maintenance of life, accident and health insurance contracts and rendering of insurance services.

You may lodge requests and objections related to data processing on the grounds of the above rights at any time addressed to the Data Protection Officer of our company using any of the contact details shown in this notice. Requests, objections and complaints are assessed by the Central Complaint Management Field with the engagement of the Data Protection Officer without undue delay and you will receive notification about the follow-up measures no later than within one month upon receipt of your submission. Both the notification and the execution of follow-up measures are free of charge for you, unless your request is manifestly unfounded or excessive.

Processing data of a deceased person shall be subject to the provisions on the processing of personal data. The rights of a deceased person in terms of data processing may be exercised by the estate or by the person named as the beneficiary in the insurance policy.

VII.7. Your right to object to the processing of your personal data

If the processing of your personal data is carried out for a legitimate interest, including data processing for profiling or direct marketing purposes, you have the right to object, on grounds relating to your particular situation, at any time to processing of personal data concerning you.

VII.8. How long will we store your personal data?

Your data will be processed during the period of the insurance coverage and as long as any claim may be enforced in connection with the coverage, but at least for nine years from the termination of the insurance contract and the claim reported to the insurance, from closing the service request. Accounting records are created in connection with insurance, compensation and insurance services, which must be kept for at least eight years, as required by Accounting Act. The insurance company is entitled to process personal data relating to any frustrated insurance policy as long as any claim can be enforced in connection with the frustration of the policy. If the insurance company is processing data based on your consent, the data will be processed until such consent is withdrawn.

VII.9. Who may you contact with a complaint?

If you fail to resolve an objection, complaint or request concerning the processing of your personal data with our company to your satisfaction, or you believe that the processing of your personal data infringes the provisions of the Data Protection Regulation, you are entitled to lodge a complaint with the National Authority for Data Protection and Freedom of Information.

National Authority for Data Protection and Freedom of Information – Contact Information Registered seat: H-1055 Budapest, Falk Miksa utca 9 - 11. Mailing Address: 1363 Budapest, PO Box 9 Telephone: +36 30 683 5969; +36 30 549 6838; +36 1 391 1400 Telefax: +36 1 391 1410 E-mail: ugyfelszolgalat@naih.hu Website: https://naih.hu/

You are entitled to file a lawsuit in case the infringement of your personal data. The lawsuit can be brought to the court that is competent in your residence or habitual residence.

VII.10. More detailed information on the processing of personal data

Further detailed information on the processing of personal data can be found in our company's privacy notice. The privacy notice is available at www.generali.hu under "Data Processing".

VIII. INFORMATION ON LIFE, ACCIDENT AND ILLNESS INSURANCE (HEALTH INSURANCE) POLICIES

VIII.1. Information on taxation for private individuals

- VIII.1.1. Insurance benefits or proceeds paid to private individuals are exempt from tax if the payout qualifies as a death benefit, accident or illness benefit, or pension benefits or annuities specified as such in the applicable legal act. Private individuals will not incur tax liability in connection with these payouts.
- VIII.1.2. Interest income may be earned if the benefit paid out by the insurance company is not tax exempt, or qualifies as other income or other taxable income (thus, interest income may be earned, in particular, from maturity payments, upon policy surrender or partial surrender, from regular withdrawals and transfers). Any benefit payout which exceeds the total of the insurance premiums paid on a policy shall qualify as interest income, on the understanding that risk premiums paid on a policy will not be included in the total of insurance premiums. Interest income may be reduced by 50 percent of the interest income after at least 3 years from the effective date of a single premium policy, or after 6 years from the effective date of a single premium policy. Interest income may be reduced by 100 percent of the interest income after at least 5 years from the effective date of a single premium policy, or after 10 years from the effective date of a regular premium policy.

With respect to calculating interest income, top-up premiums paid on a policy will be regarded by the company as payments made on separate, single-premium policies. In the case of savings contracts with regular premiums, the calculation of the period for reducing interest income is restarted if the increase in regular premiums (premiums) compared to the previous insurance year (including indexation) exceeds the annual consumer price increase plus 30 percentage points (30 percentage points in the case of a decrease in consumer prices) for the second year preceding the year of the premium increase, as published by the Hungarian Central Statistical Office. The premium for term insurance is still excluded from the calculation of the increase in regular premiums. For period of suspension of premium payment and premium exemption, the insurance premium proportional to the length of the premium non-payment period, based on the last regular premium before that period, may be taken into account. The insurance company is required to deduct 15% of personal income tax from the interest income.

If the interest income is related to a contract concluded after June 30, 2023, or to a top-up, extraordinary premium for a contract concluded before June 30, 2023, but paid after June 30, 2023, then a 13% social contribution will also be deducted. The insurance company will assess, deduct and pay the personal income tax and social contribution to the tax authority, and issue a certificate of deduction to the private individual, in connection with which the private individual is not obliged to file a tax return.

VIII.1.3. The income replacement benefit paid to the private individuals under liability insurance shall be subject to taxes as other income (subject to the rules on income replacement). Tax advances payable on taxable income shall be deducted by the insurance company from the proceeds or benefit payouts. Please, note that private individuals are required to declare this income on their tax returns. VIII.1.4. Income earned from the surrender or partial surrender of 'death only' life insurance policies taken out for an indeterminate policy term, which exceeds the total of taxable premiums paid by the paying agent (employer) and the premiums paid by the private individual shall be taxable as other income, provided that any paying agent (employer) has paid tax exempt premium on the same policy. Upon benefit payment, the insurance company deducts 15% of personal income tax advance from the tax base determined in accordance with the effective regulations. Please, note that private individuals are required to declare this income on their tax returns, while they are also required to declare and pay social contribution on this income.

If the beneficiary of any insurance benefit is not a private individual (e.g.: business entity), then – by way of derogation from the above provision – the insurance company will not determine any tax liability, but the beneficiary will be obliged to account for the income received from the insurance company, and shall declare the related tax liability in compliance with the applicable legislative provisions.

- VIII.1.5. In respect of pension insurance policies which meet the statutory criteria and have taken or will take effect on or after January 1, 2014, the private individual policyholder may request that 20 percent but maximum HUF 130 000 of the personal income tax he/she would be required to pay on the aggregate taxable income earned during the tax year and reduced by other tax reliefs, should be credited to his/her pension insurance policy. Policyholders are provided with detailed information at the time when they take out the insurance.
- VIII.1.6. Since the legislative provisions described in the foregoing may change from time to time, we kindly advise you to continuously monitor legislative changes, particularly changes or amendments to the act on personal income tax, the act on social contribution, and the act on the rules of taxation, in your own interest. We regularly update the notice on the effective rules on our corporate website.

VIII.2. Changes allowed to the technical interest rate

In respect of life, accident and illness insurance (health insurance), the insurance company is allowed to modify the technical interest rate during the term of the insurance policy, provided that such modification only takes place if the maximum technical interest rate specified in the legislation has also been modified. The extent of the modification may not exceed the maximum rate specified in the legislation.

VIII.3. Payment of benefits to the heirs of the insured as beneficiaries

If, in accordance with the provisions of the insurance conditions governing the insurance contract, the beneficiaries of the services payable in the event of the death of the insured are the heirs of the insured, the insurer shall pay the services to the heirs in equal shares, unless the heirs instruct the insurer otherwise.

IX. REFUND OF VALUE ADDED TAX

Please be advised that in the context of its obligation arising from or in relation to insurance policies, the insurance company can only reimburse the value-added tax (VAT) imposed on the price of services required for restoring the conditions which existed before the occurrence of the loss or damage or for eliminating the effects of the loss or damage suffered, subject to VAT (purchase costs of materials, repair and restoration costs), where the amount of VAT is shown on the invoice, or where the amount of VAT can be calculated on the basis of the invoice, provided that the beneficiary is not refunded the VAT from general government budgets under the regulations to which it is subject.

X. INFORMATION ON RESIDENCE FOR TAX PURPOSES

- X.1. Pursuant to Act XXXVII of 2013 on the rules of international public administration cooperation related to taxes and other public duties (hereinafter: Aktv.), and pursuant to Act XIX of 2014 on the promulgation of the Agreement between the Government of Hungary and the Government of the United States of America to Improve International Tax Compliance and to Implement FATCA and on the amendment of other related acts (hereinafter: FATCA Act), the insurance company is required to check the tax residence of customers and for that purpose it shall process the necessary data and statements of customers. If the policyholder or the beneficiary of insurance proceeds and benefits qualifies as a US or other foreign resident for tax purposes, then pursuant to the Aktv and FATCA Act, the insurance company will transfer the information pertaining to such person as well as to the insurance policy to the Tax Office, to promote the automated exchange of information.
- X.2. Pursuant to data and legal statement made by the policyholder or the beneficiary of insurance proceeds and payments, the insurance company will determine whether or not the insurance policy is a "reportable account"; moreover, the insurance company is entitled to reclassify the account after the contract is concluded in the cases set out in the Aktv. and in the FATCA Act. The insurance company will continuously monitor data required for the due diligence procedure of tax residency as well as policy values related to its insurance policy portfolio to detect any significant change thereto as defined in the Aktv. and the FATCA Act.
- X.3. A detailed written notice on the due diligence procedure related to tax residency is available at https://generali.hu/Adougyi-illetekesseg.aspx.

XI. INTEREST ON LATE PAYMENT

If the insurance premium is paid after its due date, the insurance company may claim interest on late payment in the amount set out in the Act on the Civil Code (hereinafter: Civil Code).

If the policyholder obliged to pay the premium has to be considered as an undertaking or contracting authority according to Act IX of 2016 about Recovery Costs, the insurance company, in addition to default interest, may lay claim to recovery costs defined in the abovementioned act in case of late payment of the premium.

XII. ADMINISTRATION FEE

The insurance company may charge an administration fee for certain procedures in order to recover the costs that incurred in relation to such procedures. The general, special and additional terms may contain further rules regarding administration fee.

XIII. RULES OF ACCOUNTING FOR INSURANCE PREMIUMS PAID

If the policyholder is in arrears with the insurance premium payable on his/her policy/policies, and a payment made by the Policyholder to the insurance company is not enough to cover all his/her debts, the policyholder's payment made in arrears on his/her insurance policy (or policies) will be allocated in accordance with the effective regulations. In the absence of regulations, the payment will be allocated in the following order: principal debt (insurance premiums arrears), interest on late payment, administration fee.

If the policyholder is in arrears with several insurance premiums under the same insurance policy (owes the insurance company several premium instalments), and the policyholder's payment does not cover all the arrears, the payment will be used to cover the older arrears.

XIV. METHOD OF PAYMENT

- XIV.1. The parties to the insurance policy may agree on any of the following methods of payment for settling the insurance premium:
 - postal payment order (postal remittance form) the insurance company sends the policyholder a postal remittance order with the due
 premium in accordance with the selected premium payment frequency, which the policyholder will use to make the payment.
 - direct debit authorization (for the collection of payments) the policyholder authorizes his/her account holder bank to regularly debit the
 payer's account with the due insurance premiums,
 - wire transfer order before the due date of the premium payment (in accordance with the selected premium payment frequency), the insurance company sends the policyholder a pro forma invoice, and the policyholder will transfer the amount shown on the pro forma invoice to the insurance company.
- XIV.2. The insurer may also allow the payment of the premium due on the basis of a payment request sent to the policyholder, provided that the service is available at the policyholder's bank (payment service provider). Payment of the premium on the basis of the payment request is deemed to be made if the policyholder initiates the bank transfer of the premium indicated in the payment request to his bank within the validity period indicated in the payment request.

A payment request is a payment service that allows the sender of the request to initiate an instant bank transfer order in the form of a message to the recipient of the request. The payment request contains the amount to be paid and all the information necessary to initiate the bank transfer. The recipient of the payment request decides whether to accept the request and thereby complete the bank transfer of the requested amount.

- XIV.3. In the absence of a postal remittance form, a pro forma invoice or any other document (e.g. invoice) issued by the insurance company to facilitate premium payment, the policyholder is required to pay the due premium by credit card payment on the insurer's website, by bank transfer or at the nearest customer service office of the insurance company by reference to the policy number.
- XIV.4. If not concluded otherwise
 - a) in case the contract never enters into force, the insurance premium paid before the conlusion of the contract shall be paid back by the insurance company in the following ways:
 - aa) if the premium was paid by credit card:
 - if the policyholder is a legal entity that is not listed in the register of official company records (hereinafter: the register of companies) and is not considered a company according to Act V of 2006 on Public company information, company registration and winding-up proceedings (hereinafter: Company Procedures Act), to the policyholder's mailing address, or, failing that, to the residential address of the policyholder, by post,
 - if the policyholder is a legal entity listed in the register of companies and classified as a company according to the Company Procedures Act, by bank transfer to the bank account number of the policyholder registered in the register of the companies;
 - ab) if the premium was paid by bank transfer, then to the bank account number from where the premium was transfered;
 - b) in case the effective contract terminates and the policyholder is entitled for premium reimbursement, then the premium surplus shall be paid back by the insurance company in the following ways:
 - ba) if the premium was paid by credit card, then
 - to the bank account number registered in the contract or in absence of that, to another bank account number registered by the insurer in the name of the policyholder by bank transfer,
 - in the absence of the above:
 - if the policyholder is a legal entity that is not listed in the register of companies and is not considered a company according to Company Act, to the policyholder's mailing address, or, failing that, to the residential address of the policyholder, by post,
 - if the policyholder is a legal entity listed in the register of companies and classified as a company according to the Company Act, by bank transfer to the bank account number of the policyholder registered in the register of the companies;
 - bb) if the premium was paid by bank transfer or by direct debit authorization, then to the bank account number from where the premium was transfered:
 - bc) if the premium was paid by postal payment order, then
 - to the bank account number registered in the contract, or in absence of that, to another bank account number registered by the insurer in the name of the policyholder by bank transfer,
 - in the absence of the above, if the premium was paid actually by bank transfer, to the bank account number from where the premium was transfered,
 - in the absence of the above:
 - if the policyholder is a legal entity that is not listed in the register of companies and is not considered a company according to Company Act, to the policyholder's mailing address, or, failing that, to the residential address of the policyholder, by post,
 - if the policyholder is a legal entity listed in the register of companies and classified as a company according to the Company Act, by bank transfer to the bank account number of the policyholder registered in the register of the companies.
- XIV.5. If the policyholder has chosen to pay the premium by postal payment order (postal remittance form), however the premium is not paid by postal remittance form and the policyholder has not requested a change in the payment method, the insurer is entitled with the prior information of the policyholder to switch the payment method to the actual method of payment also without the specific request of the policyholder. The insurer shall notify the policyholder of the planned switch of the payment method at least 30 days in advance. If the policyholder does not agree, the insurer will not change the method of payment following the statement of objection respectively reset it without delay.

XV. INSURANCE INTERMEDIARY

- XV.1. Insurance policies may be sold by tide insurance intermediaries or independent insurance intermediaries or ancillary insurance intermediaries.
- XV.2. Tied insurance intermediaries (agents) are engaged in selling insurance products based on their relationship with the Insurance company. Tied insurance intermediaries may be multiple agents who are contracted with several insurance companies at the same time, and sell competitive products of such insurers. Any loss or damage caused by the activities of tied insurance intermediaries shall be the liability of the insurance company. The insurance company is obliged to the restitution of any non-material violation of one's rights relating to personality.
- XV.3. Independent insurance intermediaries may also be brokers who act in representation of the customer, and sell competitive products of such insurers.

Any loss or damage caused by violation of the rules of professional conduct by independent insurance intermediaries or their negligence in complying with such rules, shall be their sole liability. This liability shall apply to all persons acting in the name of (on behalf of) the independent insurance intermediary.

Independent insurance intermediaries are not authorized to receive insurance premiums on behalf of the insurance company.

- XV.4. Person engaged in insurance mediation activities as an ancillary activity shall mean a natural or legal person differing from credit institution or investment firm as defined in Article 4. (1) 1. and 2. points of Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council – who carries on insurance mediation activities as an ancillary activity remunerated, with the liability of the principal insurer, broker or multiple agent, and in a supplementary way related to the principal professional activity if all conditions below are met:
 - a) the person's principal professional activity is not the insurance brokerage;
 - b) the mediated insurance product is complementary to the product or service supplied by provider:
 - c) the mediated insurance product does not cover any life or liability risks, except such life or liability risk cover completes the product or service provided as a principal professional activity by the person;
 - d) does not collect beforehand premiums or amounts from the insurer intended for the client.
- XV.5. Representatives acting on behalf of the insurance company, including its agents, may receive insurance premiums in exchange for a preprinted NCR receipt form with the printed logo of Generali (receipt), in the maximum amount of HUF 250.000. Representatives of the insurance company are not authorized to receive insurance premiums in excess of the above limit.

For certain products, the representative of the insurance company is not authorized to receive an insurance premium, the relevant information can be found on the offer form provided by the insurance company.

- XV.6. Neither insurance agents nor multiple agents acting on behalf of the insurer shall collect beforehand premiums or amounts intended for the client.
- XV.7. Natural persons of 4. § (1) 15. b) point of Insurance Act (Bit.) who are not intermediaries and who are employed by and carry out direct sales activity for the insurer (contributors of the insurer) receive performance-related remuneration. This information is also for the case when following conclusion of the life insurance contract the client of the insurer provides payment in connection with the insurance contract except subsequent frontloaded premium payments.

XVI. ELIGIBILITY TO DISCOUNTS

If the policyholder has applied for and been granted a discount which affect premium rates, and the conditions which allowed the policyholder to be eligible to the discount have changed or no longer exist (e.g.: in the case of direct debit authorization for the collection of payments, the payment could not be made because the authorization was not given or has been withdrawn), the policyholder will no longer be eligible to the discount and will be required to pay the insurance premium determined with standard rates (without the discount).

In such a case the premium determined without the discount becomes due when the insurance company first sends out the respective payment notice (pro forma invoice, postal remittance form) or first tries to collect the payment by direct debit authorization.

XVII. FORMAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS FOR THE VALIDITY OF LEGAL STATEMENTS (NOTIFICATIONS, REPORTING)

- XVII.1. The parties to insurance policies are required to serve their legal statements in the form and manner provided for herein, and their legal statements shall only be valid if made in any of the following forms:
 - the legal statement is signed and sent to the address of the insurance company in a postal mail,
 - the legal statement is signed and faxed to the fax number indicated and disclosed by the insurance company,
 - the legal statement is signed, scanned and sent as an email attachment to the email address indicated and disclosed by the insurance company,
 - the legal statement is sent to the email address indicated and disclosed by the insurance company, provided that the person making the statement has given prior consent to electronic communication, and the statement is sent to the insurance company from the email address indicated in such consent,
 - the legal statement is delivered at any customer service center of the insurance company in person or by a third person,
 - the legal statement is made over the phone at the telephone number indicated and disclosed by the insurance company, with the exception
 of legal statements which are subject to the conclusion of a separate service contract pursuant to the insurance company's regulations.
 - in the case of certain policies specified by the insurance company, if a service contract is concluded, the legal statement may be made in the insurance company's online policy management system where it is registered and archived by the insurance company,
 - in the case of certain policies specified by the insurance company, if a service contract is concluded, the legal statement may be made as
 a statement via the insurance company's call center (TeleCenter) where it is recorded by the insurance company.

The insurance company may stipulate different declaration requirements for certain types of policies and legal statements, or may stipulate additional provisions which shall be set out in the general terms and conditions or special conditions applicable to the insurance policy, or in the agreement made by and between the parties.

The provisions on the **manner and deadline of filing insurance claims** are set forth in the general terms and conditions and special conditions applicable to the particular insurance policy.

XVII.2. It shall also be considered a written declaration, if the document is signed by the declarant and is sent to one of the insurer's contact addresses by fax or from any email address to which the scanned declaration is attached.

XVII.3. Documents sent by the insurance company by post shall be considered served on the 5th day after dispatch (presumption of service), even if the mail is returned from the delivery address – as registered by the insurance company – with an endorsement 'Addressee no longer at address', 'Mail unclaimed' or "Obstructed delivery".

The addressee may lodge an objection within fifteen days of the date on which he became aware of the presumption of service, but at the latest within three months of the date on which the presumption of service became effective.

An objection will be accepted by the insurer if the addressee has been unable to receive the postal item because the service was irregular or because he was unable to receive the item for other reasons through no fault of his own.

Addressees other than natural persons may lodge an objection only where service was irregular.

The objection shall contain those facts and circumstances which substantiate the irregular nature of the service or substantiate the lack of fault on his part. If the insurer accepts the objection, the legal consequences of service are invalid, and the insurer will repeat the service.

Documents sent by the insurance company in a registered postal mail requesting return receipt shall be considered served

- if the mail is refused by the recipient, on the day of the refusal,
- if the mail is received by the recipient or a legal representative, on the day when they confirm receipt with their signature.

If the parties agree on electronic communication, the insurer shall be entitled to deliver its correspondence relating to the contract sent by electronic means to a secure electronic storage place (hereinafter referred to as "storage place") at the disposal of the policyholder, subject to registration. The mail thus delivered shall become accessible to the policyholder upon its placement in the storage place. The insurer shall notify the policyholder of the delivery to the storage place by any other electronic means of contact provided by the policyholder (e.g. email, sms, push message). The electronic storage place is available in the online policy management system operated by the insurer. The policyholder is obliged to complete the registration required to use the storage place on the insurer's website (https://www.generali.hu/Belepes). The policyholder is not entitled to request delivery of electronic messages delivered to the storage place by other electronic channels (e.g. email). Documents sent electronically shall be deemed to have been delivered on the day of sending or, in the case of delivery to a storage place, on the day of placement in the storage place.

XVII.4. Distance legal statement addressed to the Insurance Company shall come into force when it is delivered, whereas a contract statement made by way of electronic means shall become effective when made available for the Insurance Company.

XVIII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- XVIII.1. Under the insurance policy, the parties will not be bound by any prior business dealings or by any practice they have established between themselves. Furthermore, the parties shall not be bound by any practice considered generally applicable and widely known in the insurance industry by parties to similar policies.
- XVIII.2. The agreement of the parties will include all conditions of the insurance policy, while all earlier agreements made by the parties and not set out in the written contract shall be null and void.
- XVIII.3. The insurance company shall only conclude the insurance policy if the policyholders is not subject to
 - any sanction, prohibition or restriction under United Nations resolutions; or
 - any trade or economic sanctions, or other statutory penalties under the laws or regulations of the European Union or the United States of America, including in particular the EU System of Financial Penalties and the Consolidated Sanctions List of the US Department of Treasury's Office of Foreign Asset Control ('OFAC').

No insured, beneficiary or other recipient of insurance benefits or proceeds (hereinafter jointly referred to as: recipient of payment) may be validly designated in the insurance policy if such person is subject to the sanctions, prohibitions or restrictions referred to above.

The insurance policy, or the respective sections, will be terminated if the policyholder or the recipient of payment had been subject to the above sanctions, prohibitions or restrictions prior to the conclusion of the insurance policy. In that case the insurance policy will be terminated as of the date when such sanctions, prohibitions or restrictions took effect.

The insurance company shall not be liable to pay any claim or provide any benefit to recipients of payment who are subject to such sanctions, prohibitions or restrictions.

In addition to the above, the insurance company does not provide liability insurance services

- in respect of any judgment, award, payment, legal costs and expenses or settlement delivered, made or incurred where legal actions are brought in a court of law within countries which operate under the laws of Excluded Countries/Territories (these countries and regions can be found on the following website: www.generali.hu/teljes-embargo), or
- any order made anywhere in the world to enforce such judgment, award, payment, legal costs and expenses or settlement either in whole or in part.
- XVIII.4. The Insurer sells its products without giving advice, except for insurance-based investment products (PRIIPs). Advice related to sales of PRIIPs is free of charge.
- XVIII.5. Please note if you purchase an insurance product as part of a package or as complementary of such product or service that isn't an insurance product in one arrangement, providing information about the opportunity of purchasing the product or service separately is the obligation of the supplier or the service provider.

XIX. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION

Unless otherwise agreed and stipulated by the parties, or otherwise provided for in legal regulations, the insurance contract shall be governed by Hungarian law.

If the policyholder has a permanent address, registered office or habitual residence in Hungary at the time when the insurance policy is concluded, all disputes arising from or in relation to the insurance policy shall be referred to the exclusive competence of Hungarian courts.

XX. INFORMATION ON DISTANCE MARKETING

- XX.1. Any contract which the policyholder intends to conclude without the simultaneous physical presence of the consumer and the service provider shall be subject to the provisions of Act XXV of 2005 on Distance Marketing of Consumer Financial Services (hereinafter: Distance Marketing Act).
- XX.2. If the policyholder is a consumer within the meaning of Section 3 (2) ca) and Section 6 of the Distance Marketing Act, the policyholder is entitled to cancel the insurance policy with immediate effect without giving reasons, within 14 days of its conclusion (or of the submission of the application if the policy is concluded by the implied approval of the insurer) provided that the policy is concluded between the insurance company and a consumer policyholder through distance marketing in a manner that the insurance company only applied telecommunications means specified in Section 2 (1) g) of the Act to sell the insurance. The policyholder's right to cancel during a cooling-off period does not apply to policies with a policy period of less than one month.

Contrary to the previous rules, in case of life insurance contracts, the termination period is 30 days from the day when the consumer was informed about the conclusion of the contract by the insurer.

- XX.3. The notice of cancellation must be sent or delivered in person to any customer service office of the insurance company, in written form. The right of cancellation shall be considered validly exercised if the policyholder mails or otherwise verifiably delivers the notice of cancellation to the insurance company before the end of the cooling-off period specified in Section 6 (1)-(8) of the Act.
- XX.4. The insurance policy will be terminated on the day when the written notice of cancellation is received by the insurance company. Before the end of the cooling-off period, the insurance company may only deliver covered services or pay benefits under the insurance policy if it is specifically agreed to by the policyholder.

If the policyholder concludes the insurance policy with a commencement date which falls within the cooling-off period, the insurance company shall regard this as a consent to the commencement of coverage.

XX.5. Pursuant to Section 8 of the Act, if the policyholder cancels the policy within the cooling-off period, the insurance company may only claim premiums in proportion to the services actually delivered on the policy, i.e. the proportionate charge of coverage until the cancellation date of the insurance. The amount payable by the policyholder shall be the amount proportionately due – in relation to the services specified in the insurance policy as a whole – in respect of the service (insurance coverage) actually delivered by the insurance company. An administrative charge for the conclusion of the policy may only be claimed to the extent a service was actually delivered and as long as the charge is proportionate to the services offered under the insurance policy. If the insurance policy is cancelled by the policyholder in the cooling-off period, the insurance company will refund any insurance premiums paid by the policyholder after deducting the amount proportionate to the coverage actually delivered by the insurance company promptly, but within 30 days at the latest of receipt of the cancellation notice.

XXI. RULES APPLICABLE TO ELECTRONIC CONTRACTS

- XXI.1. An insurance policy is concluded electronically if the policyholder completes and submits the insurance application by electronic means on an electronic sales platform operated by the insurance company. Electronic sales platforms shall include, in particular, the generali.hu website, and if the insurance application is made with the involvement of an insurance intermediary the Agent's own website.
- XXI.2. To apply for insurance coverage and to conclude an insurance policy, the policyholder must first enter the data required on the electronic sales platform and then send the insurance application to the insurance company via the electronic sales platform. The data entered on the electronic sales platform may only be modified before the insurance application is sent. The steps of applying for insurance coverage (taking out insurance) which may be different for different insurance products are described on the electronic sales platforms.
- XXI.3. The terms and conditions of the insurance policy (policy conditions) are always made available to the policyholder by the insurance company before the insurance application is submitted. The policyholder must declare that he/she has read, understood and agreed to the policy terms and conditions before he/she can submit an insurance application.
- XXI.4. The insurance company sends a confirmation email to the policyholder when the insurance application is received. If the insurance company accepts the insurance application, it delivers to the policyholder a certificate of coverage with an advanced electronic signature and a time stamp.

The insurance policy is concluded in Hungarian and it is considered a written contract. Detailed provisions on the conclusion and inception of the insurance policy are set out in the applicable policy conditions.

XXI.5. The insurance company enters the insurance policy into its records. After registering, the policyholder may view the details of the insurance policy online via the insurance company's online policy management system.

XXII. PROVISIONS OF THE CUSTOMER INFORMATION WHICH SUBSTANTIALLY DEROGATE FROM THE PROVISIONS OF THE HUNGARIAN CIVIL CODE AND FROM USUAL CONTRACTUAL PRACTICE

This Chapter contains the provisions of the Customer Information which substantially derogate from the provisions of the Hungarian Civil Code and from the contractual practice between the parties.

XXII.1. Payment of benefits to the heirs of the insured as beneficiaries (Clause VIII.3.)

If, in accordance with the provisions of the insurance conditions governing the insurance contract, the beneficiaries of the services payable in the event of the death of the insured are the heirs of the insured, the insurer shall pay the services to the heirs in equal shares, unless the heirs instruct the insurer otherwise.

XXII.2. Allocation Order of Premium Payments (Chapter XIII)

If the premium payment made in arrears by the policyholder is not enough to cover all the debts, such payment will be allocated in accordance with the regulations governing the insurance policies, or in the absence of such regulations, in accordance with the provisions set out in this Customer Information.

If the policyholder is in arrears with several insurance premiums under the same insurance policy, all premium payments made in arrears will be allocated in accordance with the provisions set out in this Customer Information.

XXII.3. Modification of the method of premium payment based on the actual payment of premium by the policyholder (Clause XIV.5)

If the policyholder has chosen to pay the premium by postal payment order (postal remittance form), however the premium is not paid by postal remittance form and the policyholder has not requested a change in the payment method, the insurer is entitled with the prior information of the policyholder to switch the payment method to the actual method of payment also without the specific request of the policyholder. The insurer shall notify the policyholder of the planned switch of the payment method at least 30 days in advance. If the policyholder does not agree, the insurer will not change the method of payment following the statement of objection respectively reset it without delay.

XXII.4. Formal requirements and conditions for the validity of legal statements (notifications, reporting) (Clause XVII.2)

By way of derogation from Section 6:7 of the Civil Code, the statement of the policyholder shall also be considered a written declaration, if such document is signed by the declarant and is sent to one of the insurer's contact addresses by fax or from any email address to which the scanned declaration is attached.

XXII.5. Conditions for objecting to the presumption of service (Clause XVII.3)

The addressee may lodge an objection within fifteen days of the date on which he became aware of the presumption of service, but at the latest within three months of the date on which the presumption of service became effective.

An objection will be accepted by the insurer if the addressee has been unable to receive the postal item because the service was irregular or because he was unable to receive the item for other reasons through no fault of his own.

Addressees other than natural persons may lodge an objection only where service was irregular.

The objection shall contain those facts and circumstances which substantiate the irregular nature of the service or substantiate the lack of fault on his part. If the insurer accepts the objection, the legal consequences of service are invalid, and the insurer will repeat the service.

XXII.6. Delivery of documents sent electronically (Clause XVII.3)

If the parties agree on electronic communication, the insurer shall be entitled to deliver its correspondence relating to the contract sent by electronic means to a secure electronic storage place (hereinafter referred to as "storage place") at the disposal of the policyholder, subject to registration. The mail thus delivered shall become accessible to the policyholder upon its placement in the storage place. The insurer shall notify the policyholder of the delivery to the storage place by any other electronic means of contact provided by the policyholder (e.g. email, sms, push message). The electronic storage place is available in the online policy management system operated by the insurer. The policyholder is obliged to complete the registration required to use the storage place on the insurer's website (https://www.generali.hu/Belepes). The policyholder is not entitled to request delivery of electronic messages delivered to the storage place by other electronic channels (e.g. email). Documents sent electronically shall be deemed to have been delivered on the day of sending or, in the case of delivery to a storage place, on the day of placement in the storage place.

XXII.7. Miscellaneous Provisions (Clause XVIII.1)

By way of derogation from Section 6:63 of the Civil Code, under the insurance policy, the parties will not be bound by any prior business dealings or by any practice they have established between themselves. Furthermore, the parties shall not be bound by any practice considered generally applicable and widely known in the insurance industry by parties to similar policies.

Looking forward to a successful cooperation:

Mihály Erdős

Chairman-CEO

szló Ilics

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Effective from: January 25, 2025